
 
Town of Swanzey Zoning Board of Adjustment  Draft Minutes 
June 20, 2016 
Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

Town of Swanzey, New Hampshire 
Swanzey Zoning Board of Adjustment 

Meeting Minutes – June 20, 2016 
 
Note:  Draft Minutes are subject to review, correction and approval by the Board. Review and approval of Minutes 
generally takes place at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board. 
 
A meeting of the Swanzey Zoning Board of Adjustment (ZBA) was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Vice 
Chair Keith Thibault. Present were Keith Thibault, Bob Mitchell, Alternate Marty Geheran, Alternate Eric 
Kallio, and Beverly Bernard, Recording Secretary. The Recording Secretary called the roll and read the 
Agenda for the meeting. 
 
Absent:  Chair William Hutwelker, Bryan Rudgers, Sarah Tatro, Alternate Adam Mulhearn, Alternate 
Shane Bryant and Alternate Charles Beauregard, Sr.  
 
Others Present:  Director of Planning and Community Development Sara Carbonneau, Daniel Shustock, 
Paul Thomas and Nathan Chamberlin from Fieldstone Land Consultants. 
 
MINUTES 
Meeting Minutes for May 16, 2016 were tabled until the next meeting. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Public Hearing Request for Variance 
Daniel Shustock requests a variance from Sections IV.B.3. and XI.B. to permit the expansion and re-
construction of a home that does not meet required setbacks.  The property is located at 440 
Homestead Avenue and is situated in the Residence District.  The property is shown at Tax Map 70, Lot 
15.  Note: this hearing is continued from the hearing that occurred on May 16, 2016. 
 
The Chair seated himself, Mitchell, Geheran for Hutwelker and Kallio for Rudgers for this hearing.  
 
There was a brief discussion regarding Geheran possible conflict of interest and it was determined that 
there was none. 
 
Thibault noted that the normal board is five members and three votes are needed to pass even though 
there are only four people present tonight. He offered the applicants the opportunity to continue the 
public hearing until there are more Board members present. Thibault asked if Shustock wanted to 
continue the hearing until July when more of the Board members were present.   Shustock decided to 
move forward.   
 
Public Hearing opened at 7:06 p.m.   
Thibault noted for Geheran that the original document from Freihofer Septic Design LLC was cutoff 
during duplication and unreadable as presented at the previous meeting of the ZBA.  The material 
presented tonight was intact.  Shustock explained that he wants to add some square footage to the 
existing house replacing some of the wood rot.  He said he plans an addition and raising the roof which 



 
Town of Swanzey Zoning Board of Adjustment  Draft Minutes 
June 20, 2016 
Page 2 of 3 
 

will add about 500 square feet.  Shustock said he is expanding into the back, expanding the footprint 
and the volume to the current structure which is about 636 square feet. Carbonneau said that the 
existing structure doesn’t meet setbacks. She noted the assessing card calls for a 1 bedroom unit and 
the owner expects to have a 3-bedroom home because he maintains that the history of the home based 
on input from neighbors indicates 3 bedrooms.  He is applying for a 3-bedroom septic design.   
 
Carbonneau said that any variance granted should be subject to State of New Hampshire construction 
approval for a 3-bedroom septic design. The lot is .37 acres.  Expansion is all towards the back and not 
closer to the road. There was no issue from abutters.  The issue is the setback; the lot is non-conforming 
but it is grandfathered. She noted that documentation of three bedrooms in the past was provided by 
notarized letter from the Faulkner family, but there is no documentation from the Town indicating the 
same.  
 
Shustock said he plans on living in the reconstructed home. It was noted that from the curb, the house 
won’t change appearance since the second story will be at the back.  The only real concern is with the 
septic.   
 
If Shustock does not get approval from the state for 3-bedroom, he will build a 2 bedroom structure, the 
second bedroom being upstairs. And a 2-bedroom septic design would be acceptable since construction 
occurred before 1967.  
Public hearing closed at 7:24 pm. 
 
Vice Chair Thibault considered the request of Daniel Shustock for a variance from Sections IV.B.3. and 
XI.B. to permit the expansion and re-construction of a home that does not meet required setbacks.  The 
property is located at 440 Homestead Avenue and is situated in the Residence District.  The property is 
shown at Tax Map 70, Lot 15.  Continued from May 16, 2016. 
 

He reviewed the Checklist for Granting a Variance with the members of the Board: 
Could the variances be granted without being contrary to the public interest? 

Members said: yes by all – Mitchell noted there is really no further encroachment on the setback 
issue and Thibault said a denial would not serve the public interest because the re-construction of 
the home would improve the neighborhood since it is currently in poor condition. 

Would the spirit of the ordinance be observed if the variances were granted? 
Members said: yes by all 

Would the granting the variances do substantial justice? 
Members said: Geheran noted it is a single person house the way it is now. Yes from all. 

Could the variances be granted without diminishing surrounding property values? 
Members said: yes from all 

Do special conditions of the property exist that distinguish it from other properties in the area?   
Members said:  yes - Mitchell said it is the smallest lot in the neighborhood. 
a. Owing to the special conditions of the property that distinguish it from other property in the area, 

there is not a fair and substantial relationship between the general public purpose of the 
ordinance and the specific application of the provision to the property?  Members said:  Mitchell 
said it makes it more consistent with properties in the neighborhood. All said yes. 

 
b. Are the proposed uses a reasonable one?  Members said:  yes by all. 
c. If the criteria in subparagraph a. and b. are not met, an unnecessary hardship will be deemed to 



 
Town of Swanzey Zoning Board of Adjustment  Draft Minutes 
June 20, 2016 
Page 3 of 3 
 

exist if, and only if: Owing to the special conditions of the property that distinguish it from other 
properties in the area the property cannot be reasonably used in strict conformance with the 
ordinance, and a variance is necessary to enable a reasonable use of the property.Not needed as 
criteria in subparagraph a. and b. were met.  
 

The Vice Chair reported that “yes” prevailed and he entertained a motion to grant the request for 
Variance from Section IV.B.3. and XI.B. Mitchell said he is prepared to approve the 3-bedroom addition. 
Thibault inquired of the Board as to whether or not Shustock have to come back to the ZBA should the 
State deny his application for a 3 bedroom septic design. 

 
Motion was made by Mitchell to grant the request of Daniel Shustock for a variance from Sections 
IV.B.3. and XI.B. to permit the expansion and re-construction of a home that does not meet required 
setbacks subject to State of New Hampshire approval of a septic system and building design 
(consistent with the number of bedrooms stated in a State of New Hampshire construction approval 
for a  septic system) on property located at 440 Homestead Avenue and situated in the Residence 
District and shown at Tax Map 70, Lot 15. There was a second to the motion by Geheran and all 
were in favor.  Motion passed. 

 
Public Hearing – Request for special exception 
Paul Thomas requests a special exception from Section V.B.2 to permit the construction of multi-family 
housing (1 existing unit and 16 new units) on property situated at 115 Old Homestead Highway.  The 
property is situated in the Business and Shoreland Protection Zoning Districts and is shown at Tax Map 
37, Lot 7.  Note: this hearing is a continuation of hearing which occurred on May 16, 2016. 
 
The Vice Chair noted the issue that was addressed earlier was sewer and water and New Hampshire 
Department of Transportation (NH DOT) approval of the driveway. 
 
At this point the applicants requested continuation to July 18, 2016 when more members of the Board 
would be present to make a decision. 
 

Motion was made by Mitchell to continue the hearing to July 18, 2016 at the request of the 
applicants. The motion was seconded by Kallio.  All were in favor. Motion passed. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 
Carbonneau noted that Old Home Day is coming up on July 16, 2016 and that Town government will 
have a booth at the event. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to adjourn was made by Mitchell, seconded by Kallio and all were in favor. Motion passed.  
Adjournment occurred at 7:40 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Beverly Bernard, Recording Secretary 


